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SAINT PAUL’S SCHOOL
1891 - 1991

Upon her death in 1888, Mrs, Eliza Burke Gregory bequeathed $10,000 for the education of
boys in Portsmouth. Her church, St Paul’s Catholic, had established a girls school, St.
Joseph’s, on King Streetin 1876. The current site was selected, purchased, and ahandsome
two stery brick structure was constructed in Italianate style. [t featured a slate roof and an
entrance tower with a marble plaque above its double doors. The school openedin
September 1892, administered by three Xavierian Brothers with 60 boys in elementary
grades, and the term "Academy” was adopted. The boys school was to be under the
management of persons of the Catholic faith, but “be open to scholars of all denominations.”

Enrollment grew steadily. By 1930 there were six Brothers and 213 boys. Its reputation
also attracted many non-Catholic students, In 1931, teaching responsibilities were assumed
by the Sisters of Charity serving at 5t. Joseph’s. Both schools became co-educational. In
1948, St. Paul’s became the high school, and St. Joseph's the elementary,

in 1957, a major modernization was completed. The tower was removed and the original
1891 structure was covere'l by a modern fagade, Only the south wall remained visible. In
1959, 5t. Paul's became the first integrated school in Portsmouth, Its final name change,
“Portsmouth Catholic High School,” occurred in 1964. By 1991, enroliment declined from
220 to 74 students, Upon closing on May 29, 1991, it was one of the oldest operating

~ Catholic high schools in the nation.

The school sat empty until 1996, when it was purchased by Monumental United Methodist
Church to create needed parking, Monumental ceded the portion of the property
containing the original building to the City of Portsmouth in 2001, and an agreement was
reached to save the historic building. The modern fagade and additions were removed.

In 2005, the schooi was purchased by Mr. and Mrs, Ernest R, Holloway. A detailed
restoration was undertaken costing $750,000. This included repairs to the original slate
roof, rebuilding the entrance tower, and restoration of the original maple floors and ornate
diagenal beadboard ceilings. The location of the original staircase was discovered and it
was recreated, The marble plaque above the main entrance was found and retumed to its

original lecation.

Aubrey C. Brock of Portsmouth was the restoration architect. Professional Contractors
Group, owned by the Holloways, completed the restoration work.

During its 100 years of existence, over 13,000 students graduated and went on to enrich
theirlives and the quality of life in Portsmouth.

DEDICATED BY THE OLDE TOWNE FOUNDATION

JANUARY 2014
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APPENDIX I

ELIZA GREGORY

At a time in Portsmouth when the Catholic community was struggling to firmly
establish itself, an Irish-born man by the name of John Burke took Eliza Keenan, also
Irish, as his wife on April 24, 1821. Their daughter, Eliza, was born around 1823. A life-
changing event, one of many to come to Eliza, the daughter, occurred at 17 years old

when her mother died (August 30, 1840).

Eliza was sent to be educated at St. J oseph’s Academy in Emmitsburg, Maryland,
the motherhouse of the Sisters of Charity. Most likely she majored in Music, for after
graduating from that institution with honors and distinction, she returned to Portsmouth
and began to teach music. Posthumously, it was written of her: “Naturally energetic, she
employed her time in teaching music as a mode of employment... The best instrumental
musical portion of society in her native city and in several other sections of the state owe

their proficiency to her care and untiring energy.”

Eliza married John H. Gregory, a native New Yorker. In 1842, he owned the
New York Store on Crawford Place where one could buy rich and beautiful silks,

damasks, linens and cloths. Their sort, John H. Gregory, Jr. was born around 1846.

In 1850, Eliza’s household consisted of herself, age 24, her father, John Burke,
60, a grocer, husband John, 32, a merchant and son, John, Jr., 4.

In 1860, Eliza, John, Sr., their son and Mr. Burke lived at §] High Street. Eliza

was a schoolteacher, Mr. Gregory, a bookkeeper and Mr. Burke was retired.



But a few years later, quite suddenly Eliza’s life unraveled. Her 18-year old son,
John, Jr. died on January 18, 1864. Twenty-one months later, on October 29, 1865 her
husband died. Only Eliza and her father remained in the household.

Although it appears that Eliza was financially secure all of her life, at some point
she established Mrs. Gregory’s Female Academy in Portsmouth. In 1868, a local
newspaper published an article about the school describing it as a “flourishing and
popular seminary of learning” that ranked with the finest. Mrs. Gregory was called “an
accomplished preceptress, earnest and devoted in her high calling, and is very well

known to almost everyone...she possess large experience in teaching the young of this

community...”

After Eliza’s father passed away November 29, 1878 at 87 years old, she found
herself alone and bereft. Around 1880, she decided to move to St. Vincent’s Hospital in
Norfolk, under the auspices of the Sisters of Charity with whom she had a bond. Her
obituary described the decision in the following way: * ....in her declining years, being
delivered by the hand of death of all her relations, she became like a stranger in a new
city. In her lonliness and despondency, she sought aid in her Holy Religion. Well did it
fill the gap caused by the severance of every human bond. St. Vincent’s Hospital became

her new home, and there under the nestling of the Sisters of Charity, she learned meek

resignation.”

During her eight years in residence, she grew close to the Sisters, and she gave

generously of her wealth to the poor and orphans.

At 8:30 AM on June 10, 1888, having receiving Last Sacraments, “she resigned
her soul to the will of God.” A large funeral mass was held at the hospital, and from
thence her body was transported to the family plot in Cedar Grove Cemetery where her

parents, husband and son had long since been interred.
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Eliza Gregory had amassed a considerable estate through inheritance, but mostly
through her own successes in teaching. Three-and-a-half months before her death, she
made her final Will. In addition to leaving $10,000 for the establishment of a school for
boys of all denominations, but under the control of the pastor of St. Paul’s Catholic
Church, she left a like amount to St. Vincent’s Hospital as well as the profits from the

sale of her properties in Portsmouth.
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1891 Catholic High School Portsmouth

1. Owner — Ernest Holloway

2. Architect - Aubrey Brock

3. Contractor ~James Garcia

4. Project- Dennis Dugay
Manager

5. Historic - Paige W. Pollard
Consultant

6. Broker - Jeffrey B. Parker
HRACRE Member

1729 Royal Park Ct, Virginia Beach, VA. 23454
757-288-8248

109 East Main St. Suite 412 Norfolk, VA. 23510

757-533-5520 Aubrevi@humphrevs.com

P.O. Box 271 Virginia Beach, VA. 23458
757-288-0108

1704 Royal Park Ct, Virginia Beach, VA 23454
757-613-9351 ddugav@cox.net

P.O. Box 4266 Suffolk, VA. 23439
757-923-1900 paigelw@ verizon.net

150 West Main St. Norfolk, VA. 23510
757-228-1820 jeff.parker@cbre.com
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1891 St. Paul’s Catholic High School Portsmouth

The 6,000 square foot property was built in 1891 as a school by the nearby St. Paul’s
Catholic Church in the Olde Towne section of Portsmouth. In 1957 a major addition to the school
was constructed which included wrapping new construction around the original structure on three
sides. During this construction the Bell Tower, which formed the front entrance to the building, was
demolished. The school was vacated in the late 1980’s and sat empty until 2002 when the 1957
addition was demolished leaving the original structure.

The building was purchased from the City of Portsmouth by the 441 Washington Street
LLC in August of 2005, construction started in September 2005 and was completed with the
issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy in mid September of 2006. Restoration of the exterior of the
building was performed based on old photographs and the interior restoration was based on
evidence found during the rehabilitation process. After removal of layers of ceiling tiles, floor tiles,
and cement we found evidence of wainscoted ceilings, maple hardwood floors, and the location of
the original center stairway.

The exterior restoration included the reconstruction of the prominent Bell Tower and front
entrance. With the assistance of historic photographs the new Tower now mirrors the original
structure both in height and architectural features. The historic photos also aided the addition of
another original feature - a “plaque” over the front door. During construction, inquiries were made
and the original “plaque” was discovered leaning against the back of St. Paul’s Catholic Church.
The seven hundred pound piece of engraved granite is now back where it belongs over the front
door announcing that the building is St. Paul’s Catholic High School built in 1891.

The roof is Buckingham Slate. It had extensive damage to both the roof structure and the
slate. After repairs to the roof structure the damaged slate was addressed. To match the existing
slate and maintain the old original look, repairs were made with existing slate. In some instances

existing slate was insufficient for the repairs and new slate was used. Buckingham slate is not



readily available so to match the original slate we had it mined in Central Virginia specifically for
the restoration project.

When the 1950°s addition was added all the windows on three sides of the building were
removed and filled with cinder blocks, this process not only destroyed the wood framed and glass
windows but also the brick window arches with their white key stones and window sills. All of these
were restored during the rehabilitation. Our Architect drew up the original window design and all
the windows were custom made to match the originals.

Maple hardwood floors were still present in most of the building. Through an extremely
labor intensive process, layers of tile and adhesive were removed without damaging the original
flooring. These floors were then refinished. Hardwood floors had previously been removed from the
hallways and one small room so during rehabilitation new Maple hardwood floors were installed in
these rooms.

One of the most difficult and disappointing aspects of the refurbishing was to find that the
outside brick walls would have to be painted. We had always planned to replace broken bricks and
point the building to maintain the brick as it had been. However, three things prevented us from
doing that; 1) two of the walls had been painted with marine paint when they were interior walls
and we could not remove the paint without destroying the brick, 2) tiles had been applied to two
sides of the building and removing the cement that held the tiles created some surface damage to
the bricks, and 3) experts advising us on the brick work noted that the “good” side had been sand
blasted and was showing signs of deterioration. As a result we were granted approval by the city
and state to paint the exterior.

The team is extremely pleased with the outcome of the building and proud to present it as a

candidate for the Best Renovated/Historic Rehabilitation award.
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BRUNING 40-21556813-!

THIB IS TO CERTIFY THAT I. ON JUNE 5, 14985 SURYEYED

THE PROPERTY SHOWN ON THIS PLAY. AND THAT THE TITLE LINES AND THE WALLS OF THE
BUILDINGS ARE BHOWN ON THIS PLAT.

THE BUILDINGS STAND STRICTLY WITHIN THE TITLE LINES AND THERE ARE NO
ENCROACHMENTS OR VISIBLE EABEMENTS. EXCEFT As BHOWN,
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1891 Catholic High School Portsmouth, VA

Best Renovated / Historic Rehabilitation
HRACRE Design Awards
2006
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sT. PAUL’S CENTRAL HIGH SCHOOL

BRONZE PLAQUE MARKS BUILDING'S
ROLE INHISTORY OF CITY'S EDUCATION

COURTESY PHOTOQ

The $2,300 marker was
purchased with funds raised
from the foundation’s Olde
Towne holiday home tour.

want to go?

What St. Paul’s School
marker dedication

When 10a.m. Saturday

Where 441 Washington
St., Olde Towne

Cost Free

By Lia Russell
The Virginian-Pilot

St. Paul’s Central High
School educated children
in downtown Portsmouth
for a century, and at 10 a.m.
Saturday, the Olde Towne

Foundation will unveil and

dedicate a bronze marker
honoring the school’s histo-
ry and contributions to the
community.

The $2,300 marker was
purchased with funds
raised from the foundation’s
Olde Towne holiday home
tour, said Leslie French, a
member of the foundation’s
board of directors.

Through such efforts,
the Olde Towne Foundation
seeks to “tell the rich histo-
ry of Portsmouth,” French
said.

Founded in 1891 as St.
Paul’s Academy for Boys,
the Roman Catholic school
was financed through a
bequest of $10,000 by Eli-
za Burke Gregory, a mem-
ber of St. Paul’s Catholic
Church, who died in 1888.

According to Portsmouth
Catholic Regional School’s
website, the Italianate-style

See ST. PAUL’S, Page 9
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Chef Sydney Meers demonst
which focused on holiday rei

WHAT'S (

The popular Detroil
cooking classes, tau

By Pamela Nichols
Correspondent

Fourteen strangers
walked into Port Norfolk's
Stove, the restaurant, in
early December. They left
five hours later, a pound
or two heavier, with holi-
day recipes in hand and a
treat or twoin reserve. The
event was a monthly cook-
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